COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

UNIFOR

AND

BELL CANADA

COMMUNICATIONS SALES EMPLOYEES





TABLE OF CONTENTS

Arti	cle	Page
1	Employment Equity	2
2	Definitions	2
3	Wage Administration	3
4	Seniority	4
5	Hours of Work	4
6	Holidays and Day Off With Pay	5
7	Vacations	7
8	Transfers	10
9	Sickness Absence	10
10	Leaves	10
11	Living and Transportation Expenses	12
12	Discipline	12
13	Problem Resolution and Grievances	12
14	Arbitration	14
15	Cost of Living Allowance	15
16	Employee Information	15
17	Validity of Agreement	15
18	Application	15
19	Deduction of Regular Dues	15
20	Employee Representatives	16
21	Notification to the Union	16
22	Health and Safety	17
23	Time Allowance	17
24	Meetings	18
25	Bargaining Procedure	18
26	Expenses	19
27	Management Rights	19
28	Workforce Adjustment	19
29	Technological Change	19
30	Benefits	20
31	Duration	20
	Witness Clause	21

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Cont'd)

Appendix	Page
A List of Occupations	22
B List of Localities	23
C Wage Schedules	24
Memoranda of Agreement	Page
- Absence due to family or personal emergencies	27
- Appendix C – Wage schedule – Base salary increases	28
- Bell Workways	29
- Employee reclassifications	30
- Managers taking live calls	31
- Mental health	32
- Outsourcing / contracting out	33
- Paid educational leave	34
- Performance management	35
- Racial justice advocate	36
- Violence or abuse in personal life	38
- Wage protection Inside Sales Representative	39
- Women union support advocate	40
- Workforce adjustment	41

ALPHABETICAL INDEX

	Page
Absence Due to Family or Personal Emergencies	27
Absence Due to Sickness or Quarantine	10
Adoption Leave	10
Appendix	
- A List of Occupations	22
- B List of Localities	23
- C Wage Schedules	24 15
Application Arbitration	14
Expedited Arbitration	14
Assignment of Tours of Duty	5
Bargaining Procedure	18
Basic Rates of Pay	3
Benefits	20
Bereavement Leave	11
Child Care Responsibilities – Leave for	10
Collective Agreement	1
Cost of Living Allowance	15
Day Off with Pay	5, 7
Deduction of Regular Dues	15
Definitions Direct Made tier Page Plan	2
Direct Marketing Bonus Plan	46 12
Discipline Discrimination	2
Distribution Channels	49
Duration of Agreement	20
Employee – Definition	2
Employee Information	15
Employee Representatives	16
Employment Equity	2, 58
- Discrimination	2
- Workforce Diversity	2
Ergonomic Guidelines	50
Expenses	19
- Arbitration	14
- Attending Meetings or Proceedings	19 12
- Living and Transportation	12
Full-time Employee - Definition	2
- Hours of Work	4
Grievances (See Problem Resolution and Grievances)	12
Half Tour of Duty – Definition	3
Headquarters – Definition	3
Health and Safety	17
- Committees	17
- Visual Display Terminal (VDT)	17
Holidays and Day Off With Pay	5
- Day Off With Pay	7
- During Vacation	6
- Holidays	5
- Pay for Holiday not Worked	7
- Pay for Work on a Holiday Hours of Work	7 4
- Assignment of Tours of Duty	5 5
- Assignment of Tours of Duty - Differential for off normal	5
- Full-time Employees	4
	•

 Overtime Part-time Employees Leaves Adoption Leave Bereavement Leave Child Care Responsibilities Personal Days Off Paid 	4 10 10 11 10
 Personal Time Off – Direct Marketing Centres Letters of Intent – Alphabetical Index Direct Marketing Bonus Plan Distribution Channels Ergonomic Guidelines Sales Bonus Plan Review Process for Disability Cases Sales Skills, Competencies and Career Mobility Training 	11 45 46 49 50 52 55
 Workforce Diversity and Employment Equity Workload Management Management Rights Meetings Bargaining Representatives Expenses Incurred 	58 59 19 18 18
- Problem Resolution and Grievances - Security Interviews - Time Allowance Notification to Unifor Representative Notification to Company	12 16 17 16, 41
Notification to the Union - Security Interviews Occupations – List of Occasional Employee – Definition Overtime	3, 16, 41 16 22 2
Part-time Employee - Basic Rates of Pay - Day Off With Pay - Definition - Hours of Work - Pay for Holiday Pay Days Pay for Holiday not Worked Pay for Work on a Holiday Pay in Lieu of Vacation Personal Days Off Paid	4 7 2 4 7 4 7 6 9
Personal Time Off – Direct Marketing Centres - Paid - Unpaid Pregnant Employees, VDT Probationary Employee	11 12 11 17
 Definition Termination Problem Resolution and Grievances Individual and Group Grievances Policy Grievances Problem Resolution Time Limits Promotional Pay Treatment 	3 12 12 12 13 12 13 4 2
Regular Employee – Definition Representative(s) - Change in Status of - Definition - Notification to	16 3 16, 41

- Notification to Company	16
- Number of	16
Review Process for Disability Cases	55
Sales Bonus Plan	46
Sales Skills, Competencies and Career Mobility Training	56
Security Interviews	16
Seniority	4
Sickness Absence	10
Supplemental Pregnancy Allowance	10
Fechnological Change	19
Геmporary Employee – Definition	2
Temporary Work Assignments	4
Γime Allowance	17
Four of Duty – Definition	3
Transfers	10
Vacations Vacations	7
- Entitlement	8
- Year of Engagement or Re-Engagement	7
- Subsequent Years	8
- Holiday During	8
- Less than a Full Year	8
- Pay	9
- Pay in Lieu of	9
- Period	8
- Scheduled in days	8
- Schedules	8
- Sickness or Accident Prior to	8
/alidity of Agreement	15
Visual Display Terminal (VDT)	17
Nage Administration	2
- Basic Rates of Pay	3 4
- Pay Days - Promotional Pay Treatment	4
- Temporary Work Assignments	4
- Wage Increases	3
Effective Day	3
- Interval from One(1) Step to the Next	3
Wage Schedules	24
Wage Schedules Witness Clause	21
Witness Glause Workforce Adjustment	19, 41
Norkforce Diversity and Employment Equity	2, 58
Workload Management	59

COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made in duplicate this 12th day of October 2023
BETWEEN:
UNIFOR, the duly certified bargaining agent, hereinafter referred to as the "Union",
OF THE FIRST PART:
- and -
BELL CANADA, hereinafter called the "Company",
OF THE SECOND PART.

ARTICLE 1 EMPLOYMENT EQUITY

Workforce Diversity

- **1.01** (a) The Company and the Union recognize the importance of achieving equity in the workplace so that all employees are treated fairly and are provided the opportunity to achieve their full potential.
- (b) This means that women, aboriginal peoples, persons with disabilities and persons who are, because of their race or colour, in a visible minority in Canada may require the implementation of special measures and the accommodation of differences to overcome unintentional discrimination. In a similar vein, the Company and the Union recognize the need for greater awareness and acceptance of the diversity of our workforce.

Discrimination

- 1.02 The Company and the Union agree that they will not threaten, intimidate or unlawfully discriminate against an employee for reasons of that employee's pregnancy, race, national or ethnic origin, colour, religion, age, sex, sexual orientation, **gender identity**, marital status, family status, disability, political affiliation with a legitimate political party, conviction for which a pardon has been granted or for exercising any rights under this Collective Agreement. Furthermore, the Company and the Union are committed to working together to ensure a workplace which is free from all harassment.
- **1.03** The Company will not discriminate against an employee because of membership in the Union or activity authorized herein on behalf of the Union.
- **1.04** Use in this Agreement of the masculine or feminine gender shall be construed as including both male and female employees, and not as specific sex designations.

ARTICLE 2 DEFINITIONS

- **2.01** For purposes of this Agreement,
- (a) "Employee" means a person employed by Bell Canada to do work in any of the occupations listed in Appendix A, but does not include a person who:
 - (1) is employed in a confidential capacity in matters relating to labour relations, or
 - (2) employed as an occasional employee, or
 - (3) exercises management functions ("leader").
- (b) "Regular Employee" means an employee whose employment is reasonably expected to continue for longer than one (1) year, although such employment may be terminated earlier by action on the part of the Company or the employee.
- (c) "Temporary Employee" means an employee who is engaged on the understanding that the period of employment is not expected to exceed two (2) years. A Temporary employee, upon accumulating 24 months of continuous service shall be offered a Regular Part-Time position and, upon his acceptance, be reclassified, to a Regular Part-Time status, in his current job and at his current work location. Should the employee refuse this offer, his employment shall be terminated.
 - (d) "Full-time Employee" means an employee who is normally required to work the basic hours of work.
- (e) "Part-time Employee" means an employee who is normally required to work less than the basic hours of work.
- (f) "Occasional Employee" means an employee who is engaged on the understanding that the period of employment will not exceed 45 days in a calendar year.

- (g) "Probationary Employee" means an employee who has worked less than 130 days or who has less than 12 months of net credited service. As soon as one (1) of these two (2) terms is completed, the employee will no longer be considered a probationary employee.
- (h) "Tour of Duty" means the number of basic hours of work which an employee is scheduled for the day.
 - (i) "Half Tour of Duty" means one-half (1/2) the duration of a tour of duty.
- (j) "Representative" means an employee who has been elected to represent a group of employees, and whose election as such has been certified by the Union to the Company.
- (k) "Headquarters" means a locality listed in Appendix B in which the employee is assigned a reporting location for the days when office presence is required.

ARTICLE 3 WAGE ADMINISTRATION

Basic Rates of Pay

- 3.01 (a) The basic rates of pay for the occupations covered by this Agreement are set forth in Appendix C.
- (b) Where a new occupation is added to the unit, the basic rate of pay and wage schedule applicable to that occupation shall be determined by the Company. The Union shall be notified by the Company of the basic rate of pay and new or amended wage schedule applicable to that occupation.
- **3.02** The basic rates of pay for employees who work less than the basic hours per week shall not be less than the pro rata proportion of the basic rates of pay hereby established.

Wage Increases

- **3.03** The time interval from one (1) step to the next on the wage schedules shall be six (6) months for the Direct Marketing Associate Consumer Market, the Direct Marketing Associate Loyalty Resolution and the Team Coordinator Consumer Market. The time interval from one (1) step to the next on the wage schedules shall be twelve (12) months for the Sales Representative **and** the Internal Sales Representative
- 3.04 The time interval shall begin, for an employee who is engaged or re-engaged:
 - (a) between the first and fifteenth day of a month inclusive on the first day of that month;
 - (b) on or after the sixteenth day of a month on the first day of the following month.
- **3.05** Wage increases shall be granted on the basis of satisfactory performance as determined by the Company, and may be granted at intervals specified in the wage schedules in Appendix C, or may be deferred for a period determined by the Company.
- **3.06** Where an employee's wage increase is deferred, or his basic rate of pay is reduced, he shall be informed of the reasons for such action.
- **3.07** Increases or decreases in the basic rates of pay shall not be made effective while an employee is absent due to leave, accident, sickness or quarantine.
- **3.08** The effective day for an increase shall be the first day of the biweekly pay period closest to the first day of the month.
- **3.09** A newly hired or transferred employee who has had previous sales experience, relevant training or educational background, may be paid by the Company at a higher rate than those called for by the wage schedule where, in the Company's judgment, such rates are appropriate.

Pay Days

3.10 An employee shall be paid through direct deposit every alternate Friday an amount including his basic rate of pay, pay for overtime worked and other additions in pay for the two-week (2) period ending the Saturday previous to the pay day. Pay will be adjusted for unpaid absences which occurred during such earlier two-week (2) period.

Promotional Pay Treatment

3.11 On promotion from one (1) occupation to another, an employee's pay treatment shall be in accordance with applicable Company practices. The employee shall receive a promotional pay treatment of at least 5%.

Temporary Work Assignments

3.12 Where an employee is temporarily assigned to a higher rated occupation for a period in excess of one (1) day, and where he is required to assume all the responsibilities of the higher rated occupation, pay treatment for the period of such temporary assignment shall be in accordance with Section 3.11.

ARTICLE 4SENIORITY

- **4.01** The Company recognizes its responsibility to an employee who has a long service record and agrees to give consideration to the length of service of an employee in matters affecting him, **including but not limited to the assignment of tour of duty, overtime, vacation, days off, etc., to the extent that in its judgement circumstances will permit, having due regard to Company operations.**
- **4.02** Seniority, for the purposes of this Agreement, shall be determined by the net credited service as shown on the Company records.

ARTICLE 5 HOURS OF WORK

Full-time Employees

- **5.01** The basic hours of work per day for a Full-time employee shall be seven and one-half (7 1/2) hours, except where the work week is spread over six (6) days in accordance with Section 5.02.
- **5.02** The basic hours of work per week for a Full-time employee shall be 37 1/2 hours on the basis of a five (5) day week. However, the Company reserves the right to spread the basic hours of work over six (6) days when and where it considers necessary.

Part-time Employees

5.03 The hours of work for employees who are required to work less than the basic hours shall be determined by the Company.

A Temporary Part-Time employee shall be scheduled a minimum of 7.5 hours per week. A Regular Part-Time employee shall be scheduled a minimum of 15 hours per week or 30 hours per pay period.

Overtime

5.04 Where an employee is required to work overtime which immediately precedes or continues after his tour of duty (continuous), he shall,

a) be paid for the total additional minutes worked in accordance with the following table

Minutes Worked	Time Paid For
1 - 5	Nil
6 - 20	½ hr.
21 - 30	¾ hr.
31 - 40	1 hr.
41 - 50	1 ¼ hrs.
51 - 60	1 ½ hrs.
61 - 70	1 ¾ hrs.
71 - 80	2 hrs.
81 - 90	2 ¼ hrs.
91 - 100	2 ½ hrs.
etc.	etc.

And

- b) where required to work one (1) hour or more of overtime, receive an additional one (1) hour's pay if he has not been given at least one (1) hours' notice of such overtime required.
- 5.05 Where the Company agrees to compensate an employee for overtime hours worked by permitting the employee time off from her scheduled hours of work, such time off shall be banked on the basis of one and onehalf (1½) hours for each hour of overtime worked. When taken, such time off shall be paid at the employee's basic rate of pay. Any such compensating time off shall be subject to the limits and conditions determined by the Company.

Assignment of Tours of Duty

5.06 Each employee shall be assigned to his tours of duty by the Company, giving due consideration to business requirements as defined by Company practices and the employee's seniority within the work group as defined by the Company.

Differential for Work in Off-Normal Period

An employee shall be paid an amount of 75 cents for each hour, or part thereof, worked between 21 hours and midnight on any day.

A differential shall not be paid for:

- (a) the period for which an employee is being paid on an overtime basis,
- (b) paid absence from duty.

ARTICLE 6 HOLIDAYS AND DAY OFF WITH PAY

Holidays

6.01 The following shall be recognized as Company holidays:

New Year's Day Civic Holiday (Ontario only)

Good Friday Labour Day

Easter Monday **National Truth & Reconciliation Day** Victoria Day Thanksgiving Day

National Holiday (June 24th -Québec only) Christmas Day

Boxing Day (Dec. 26th) Canada Day (July 1st)

- **6.02** National Holiday (Québec only) and Civic Holiday (Ontario only) are substituted respectively for Remembrance Day.
- **6.03** To meet general custom in a particular community, another holiday may be substituted for any of the recognized Company holidays listed above.
- **6.04** Where a Company holiday falls on a Sunday, the Monday immediately following shall be observed as the holiday.
- **6.05** Where a Company holiday falls on a day Monday to Friday inclusive, it shall be included in the weekly schedule for all employees for that week.
- 6.06 Where a Company holiday falls on a Saturday, the Company shall either include it in the weekly schedule of an employee or shall grant another day off with pay, computed in accordance with the provisions of Section 6.11, outside the period of the annual vacation at a time determined by the Company.
- **6.07** Notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 6.05 and 6.06, the observance of the Boxing Day holiday shall be in accordance with the following:
- (a) Where Boxing Day falls on a Monday, the Tuesday immediately following shall be observed as the holiday.
- (b) Where Boxing Day falls on a day Tuesday to Friday inclusive, it shall be included in the weekly schedule for all employees for that week.
- (c) Where Boxing Day falls on a Saturday, an employee, unless the Saturday has been included in his weekly schedule, shall be granted the day off with pay on the Monday immediately following.

Pay for Work on a Holiday

- **6.08** (a) Where a Full-time employee is required to work on a Company holiday which is included in his scheduled work week, he:
 - (i) shall be paid at his basic rate of pay for that day;

or

- (ii) may be granted a holiday with pay at a time convenient to the employee and the Company, provided the employee works his basic hours for the day.
- (b) In addition, he shall be paid time and one-half (1 1/2) for the time worked between midnight of the day preceding and midnight of the holiday.
- **6.09** (a) Where a Part-time employee is required to work on a Company holiday which is included in his scheduled work week, he shall be paid the greater of:
 - (i) 10% of his basic rate of pay earned for the pay period immediately preceding the holiday;

or

- (ii) 5% of his basic rate of pay earned for the two (2) pay periods immediately preceding the holiday.
 - (b) In addition, he shall be paid in accordance with Subsection 6.08 (b).
- **6.10** Where an employee is required to work on a Saturday holiday as a day outside his scheduled work week, he shall be paid on an overtime basis for the time worked and shall be granted another day off with pay as provided in Section 6.06.

Pay for Holiday not Worked

- **6.11** Where an employee is not required to work on a Company holiday which is included in his scheduled work week, he shall be granted the day off with pay, at his basic rate of pay for that day, or if a Part-time employee, the greater of:
 - (a) 10% of his basic rate of pay earned for the pay period immediately preceding the holiday;

or

(b) 5% of his basic rate of pay earned for the two (2) pay periods immediately preceding the holiday.

Day Off With Pay

- **6.12** In addition to the holidays stipulated in Section 6.01, each employee in the employ of the Company on December 1st shall be granted a day off with pay, on a day determined by the Company, at his basic rate of pay for that day, or if a Part-time employee, the greater of:
 - (a) 10% of his basic rate of pay earned for the pay period immediately preceding the day off with pay;

or

- (b) 5% of his basic rate of pay earned for the two (2) pay periods immediately preceding the day off with pay.
- **6.13** The day off with pay shall be granted during the period from December 1st to the 15th of January of the following year.
- **6.14** Where an employee cannot be granted a day off in that period, he shall be paid one (1) additional day's pay, at his basic rate of pay, or if a Part-time employee, the greater of:
 - (a) 10% of his basic rate of pay earned for the pay period immediately preceding the day off with pay;

or

(b) 5% of his basic rate of pay earned for the two (2) pay periods immediately preceding the day off with pay.

ARTICLE 7 VACATIONS

NOTE:

Notwithstanding the provisions of this Article set out below, an employee's entitlement to vacation with pay for a calendar year during which an employee takes a leave of absence with net credited service, shall be as determined by the terms and conditions of the leave.

Entitlement in Year of Engagement or Re-Engagement

7.01 An employee, in the year he is engaged or re-engaged, shall be entitled to one (1) day of vacation with pay for each month of service completed in that calendar year, up to a limit of ten (10) days of vacation with pay.

For purposes of this Section:

- (a) For an employee engaged or re-engaged on or before the fifteenth day of the month, service shall be counted from the first day of that month.
- (b) For an employee engaged or re-engaged on or after the sixteenth day of the month, service shall be counted from the first day of the month following.

Entitlement in Subsequent Years

7.02 An employee, in the years subsequent to his year of engagement or re-engagement, shall first become entitled to a vacation with pay in accordance with the table below, in the year in which he is to complete the required number of years of service. The same entitlement applies to each subsequent year, until a higher entitlement is attained as indicated in the table below:

Years of Net Credited Service	Weeks Of Vacation
1	3
10	4
18	5
25	6

- **7.03** In this Article, where a calendar week falls in two (2) months, such calendar week shall be considered to be in the month in which the Wednesday of that week falls. This interpretation shall apply in determining the end of April for scheduling under the provisions of Section 7.04, or rescheduling under the provisions of Section 7.10.
- **7.04** All vacations are for a full calendar year. The vacation for a particular year may be scheduled during the period of January 1st of that year to the end of April of the following year, it being understood that vacation entitlement is determined in accordance with net credited service in the year for which the vacation is given.
- **7.05** Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 7.02, an employee who accumulates less than a full year of net credited service in a calendar year shall be entitled to a vacation with pay for that calendar year as indicated in the following table:

Full Vacation Entitlement based on Employee's Net Credited Service	3 Weeks	4 Weeks	5 Weeks	6 Weeks
Number of Day's Vacation Entitlement for each month during which an employee accumulates 15 or more days of Net Credited Service	1.5 Days per month	2 Days per month	2.5 Days per month	3 Days per month
Maximum Days' Vacation for the Year	15 Days	20 Days	25 Days	30 Days

- **7.06** Where a Company holiday falls on a day of the annual vacation, an employee shall be entitled to an additional day off with pay at a time convenient to the employee and the Company.
- **7.07** Vacation schedules shall be prepared each year by the Company with due consideration to seniority, provided however, that such schedules shall be arranged as to cause, in the judgement of the Company, the least possible interference with efficient performance of the work. In general, vacations shall commence at the beginning of the calendar week unless the demands of the work make this impossible.

Each employee will be allowed to schedule a maximum one week of vacation per year as individual days. Furthermore, these individual days can only be scheduled after the vacation schedule has completed its full circulation.

An employee who has selected all of his vacation entitlement in weeks may request to cancel one week of vacation and replace by the equivalent vacation in days. The approval of such requests will be at the discretion of the company and will be based upon the needs of the business.

- **7.08** An employee shall not normally have the right to carry forward all or part of his vacation from one (1) vacation period to another, or to take vacation entitlement applicable to two (2) calendar years consecutively.
- **7.09** "Vacation Period" for the purposes of this Article shall mean the period of January 1st of one (1) year to the end of April of the following year.
- **7.10** Where an employee is taken ill or meets with an accident before leaving work on the last day of work preceding the vacation, and is prevented from taking the vacation, the Company may reschedule the vacation at a later date in the calendar year for which the vacation is given or by the end of April of the following year.

- **7.11** An employee shall be paid during vacation at his basic rate of pay determined in accordance with Company practice; but
 - (a) in the year he is engaged or re-engaged, vacation pay shall not be less than 4% of his total earnings in the entire period of current service in the calendar year for which the vacation is given;
 - (b) in the years subsequent to his year of engagement or re-engagement, vacation pay shall not be less than 2% of his basic pay in the calendar year for which the vacation is given, for each week of vacation

and in addition,

(i) if the employee has less than six (6) years net credited service he shall also receive 4% on any difference between his total earnings in the calendar year for which the vacation is given and his basic pay for the calendar year;

or

- (ii) if an employee has six (6) or more years net credited service he shall also receive 6% on any difference between his total earnings in the calendar year for which the vacation is given and his basic pay for the calendar year.
- **7.12** An employee entitled to four (4) weeks or more of vacation, may request that he be granted pay for any or all weeks of entitlement in excess of three (3) weeks, in lieu of actually taking such vacation. Granting such a request will be at the Company's discretion.

Pay in Lieu of Vacation

- **7.13** Where an employee resigns, is laid off, is dismissed or has completed his work, he shall be granted pay in lieu of vacation for the current calendar year, calculated in the manner set forth in Sections 7.14 to 7.16 inclusive.
- **7.14** An employee, with less than one (1) year's net credited service or in the year he is engaged or reengaged, shall be granted 4% of his total earnings in the entire period of current service, reduced by the amount of the pay applicable to any part of vacation taken by the employee during the same period of service.
- **7.15** An employee, with one (1) or more years of net credited service in the years subsequent to his year of engagement or re-engagement, shall be granted pay in lieu of vacation in accordance with the following:

Vacation Based on Employee's	Pay in Lieu of Vacation Based on Total Basic
Net Credited Service	Pay for the Year to which the Vacation Applies
3 weeks	6%
4 weeks	8%
5 weeks	10%
6 weeks	12%

and in addition,

(a) if the employee has less than six (6) years net credited service he shall also receive 4% on any difference between his total earnings in the calendar year for which the vacation is given and his basic pay for the calendar year

or

- (b) if an employee has six (6) or more years net credited service he shall also receive 6% on any difference between his total earnings in the calendar year for which the vacation is given and his basic pay for the calendar year.
- **7.16** The amount of pay in lieu of vacation to be granted in accordance with Section 7.15 shall be reduced by the amount of the pay applicable to any part of a vacation for the current calendar year taken by the employee before he left the Company's service.

ARTICLE 8 TRANSFERS

8.01 All employees are eligible for transfer consideration in accordance with applicable Company practices currently in force, or as amended from time to time following consultation with the Union. The Company intends to fill job vacancies with qualified Company employees, whenever possible. For an assignment required for 3 months and more, the District shall inform all its employees electronically that an assignment is available.

ARTICLE 9 SICKNESS ABSENCE

Absence Due to Sickness or Quarantine Prior to the Eighth Full Calendar Day of Absence

- **9.01** Except as otherwise provided in Section 9.02 and subject to the Company's practices, as established from time to time, the Company agrees to grant the basic rate of pay to employees absent due to their sickness or quarantine, for a continuous absence prior to the eighth full calendar day of such absence.
- **9.02** An employee working in a Direct Marketing Associate, a Direct Marketing Associate Loyalty Resolution or a Team Coordinator occupation who is absent on account of sickness or quarantine, shall be paid for continuous absence prior to the eighth full calendar day of such absence, as follows:
- (a) A Direct Marketing Associate, a Direct Marketing Associate Loyalty Resolution or a Team Coordinator with less than six (6) months of net credited service shall not be paid for absence prior to the eighth full calendar day.
- (b) A Direct Marketing Associate, a Direct Marketing Associate Loyalty Resolution or a Team Coordinator with six (6) months but less than two (2) years of net credited service shall be paid for that part of the absence in excess of four (4) consecutive half tours of duty.
- (c) A Direct Marketing Associate, a Direct Marketing Associate Loyalty Resolution or a Team Coordinator with two (2) but less than four (4) years of net credited service shall be paid for that part of the absence in excess of two (2) consecutive half tours of duty.
- (d) In the determination of pay treatment in Subsections 9.02 (b) and (c), a return to work not exceeding two (2) half tours of duty shall not be considered to have interrupted the continuity of the absence, nor the consecutiveness of the half tours of duty of absence. However, for purposes of determining the eighth full calendar day of absence, any return to work shall interrupt the continuity of an absence.
- (e) A Direct Marketing Associate, a Direct Marketing Associate Loyalty Resolution or a Team Coordinator with four (4) or more years of net credited service shall be paid for the full absence.
- **9.03** An employee is not entitled to any pay provided under this Article for any day in which he is in receipt of, or entitled to, any pay or other benefit under any other provision of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 10 LEAVES

Leave for Child Care Responsibilities

- **10.01** An employee who has completed six (6) consecutive months of continuous employment with the Company shall be granted child care or adoption leave, without pay, under the conditions of eligibility set forth in the applicable Company practices currently in effect, or as amended from time to time following consultation with the Union.
- **10.02** In addition, a Regular employee who has completed six (6) consecutive months of continuous employment with the Company and who meets the conditions of eligibility contained in the applicable Company practices shall receive an allowance under the Supplemental Allowance Plan in accordance with these same practices.

Bereavement Leave

10.03 An employee shall be granted, in the event of the death of his spouse, common-law partner, or child, bereavement leave of up to five (5) days with pay from his scheduled tours of duty that occur during the five (5) days immediately following the day of death. The term common-law partner includes same-sex partner.

10.04 An employee shall be granted bereavement leave of up to three (3) days with pay from his scheduled tours of duty that occur during the five (5) days immediately following the day of death, in the event of the death of:

- his father, his mother, the spouse or common-law partner of his father or mother;
- his brother, his sister;
- the father or mother of his spouse or common-law partner or the spouse or common-law partner of the father or mother;
- a dependant or other relative residing in the same permanent residence as does the employee;
- the child of his spouse or common-law partner;
- the son in-law or daughter in-law or the son in-law or daughter in-law of his spouse or common-law partner.

10.05 The Company may extend the periods of bereavement leave provided for in Sections 10.03 and 10.04 to a maximum of five (5) days with pay from his scheduled tours of duty that occur during the seven (7) days immediately following the day of death, when it is necessary for the employee to leave the city in which he is employed.

10.06 An employee shall be granted, in the event of the death of his grandparent or grandchild, bereavement leave of up to three (3) days with pay from his scheduled tours of duty that occur during the five (5) days immediately following the day of death.

Personal Days Off Paid

10.07 Regular Full-time employee working in the, Sales Representative **and** Inside Sales Representative position will be entitled to five (5) Personal Days Off per calendar year, at his basic rate of pay for the day. Four (4) of these days will be scheduled on the basis of one (1) per quarter, and one (1) day will be scheduled over the course of the calendar year. In order to obtain his Personal Day Off for the following quarter, the employee must be on the payroll on the last day of the current quarter.

Personal Time Off - Direct Marketing Centres

10.08 Personal Unpaid Days

Each employee holding a Direct Marketing Associate – Consumer Market or Direct Marketing Associate – Loyalty Resolution or Team Coordinator occupation with one (1) year of completed net credited service shall be granted up to four (4) personal unpaid days off. It is agreed that these personal unpaid days off will be scheduled and taken during the period January 1st through December 31st. It is understood that once an employee has completed one (1) year of net credited service, the personal unpaid days will be pro-rated and scheduled subject to business needs.

The time off shall be granted subject to the following:

- The Company will prepare a schedule to reflect the above period outlined in Section 10.08
- The four (4) personal unpaid days described above can only be taken in half (1/2) tours of duty or full tours of duty, subject to service requirements;

10.09 Two (2) of these personal unpaid days referred to in Section 10.08 may be used from January 1st through December 31st inclusively, as required, for personal emergencies.

10.10 Unused personal unpaid days will not be carried over from one year to the next.

- **10.11** An employee may choose not to avail themselves in the unpaid personal day schedule. Once the scheduling has been completed, if an employee decides to avail themselves, the employee's unpaid personal days will be pro-rated against the applicable time remaining in the year. The employee will select their unpaid personal days from the available days remaining on the schedule. Seniority rights will not apply.
- **10.12** Each employee with 24 months of completed net credited service or more, may have one (1) of their personal unpaid days as described in Section 10.08, converted to one (1) paid day off. Pay for this time off will be at the employee's basic rate of pay. The scheduling of this day will be subject to the terms and conditions of Section 10.08 in the following year.
- **10.13** It is understood that Employees transferring within the bargaining unit must have all outstanding time owing pre-approved by the new business unit before accepting to transfer.

ARTICLE 11 LIVING AND TRANSPORTATION EXPENSES

- **11.01** The Company shall pay the necessary transportation expenses incurred on the job. It is the Company's intention with respect to living and transportation expenses that an employee be reimbursed on the basis that there will be neither financial loss nor gain to the employee for reasonable expenses incurred on the job.
- **11.02** When an employee is temporarily assigned to another headquarters, the Company shall pay approved living and transportation expenses to and from the locality in which he is required to work.
- **11.03** When the Company initiates an employee transfer within the same locality, the employee, if eligible, shall be compensated as per Company practices.

ARTICLE 12 DISCIPLINE

- **12.01** No employee shall be given a written reprimand or a written warning, be suspended, dismissed or demoted for disciplinary reasons except for just cause.
- **12.02** All disciplinary measures referred to in Section 12.01 shall be removed from an employee's record no later than two (2) years after they have been imposed.
- **12.03** Notwithstanding Section 12.01, the Company retains the right to terminate the employment of a probationary employee who is found by the Company to be unsuitable.

ARTICLE 13 PROBLEM RESOLUTION AND GRIEVANCES

Problem Resolution

13.01 The Company and the Union are committed to promptly resolving problems at the level closest to the employee concerned. To that end, the parties agree that the employee's Representative or a Representative designated by the Union and the leader of the employee should try to resolve the difference prior to a grievance being filed in accordance with relevant provisions of this Article. The employee concerned may attend this meeting, if he so desires. The information exchanged during the problem resolution process shall be without prejudice to the positions of the parties in any grievance on the same matter.

Individual and Group Grievances

13.02 (a) Grievances of an individual employee or group of employees shall be handled by the Union at the request of the employee or employees, and shall be processed in accordance with Sections 13.03 and 13.04. Each grievance shall be presented to the Company within 42 calendar days from the occurrence on which such grievance is based.

- (b) Where an employee has been discharged, a grievance may be presented directly in accordance with Section 13.04.
- (c) All grievances shall be submitted in writing on a standard record of grievance form agreed to by the parties, and shall include:
 - (i) the grievor's name and occupation;
 - (ii) the date of the event giving rise to the grievance;
 - (iii) the nature of the grievance;
 - (iv) the remedy sought from the Company;
 - (v) identification of the Article(s) allegedly violated.

Step 1

13.03 Where a grievance is handled by the Union at the employee's request, the employee's Representative or a Representative designated by the Union, shall attempt to settle the grievance with the Contribution Path 4 leader of the grievor or such leader's delegate. The grievor may attend the meeting, if he so desires. That leader shall have 14 calendar days following the presentation of the grievance in which to render a decision. The leader shall sign the grievance and enter the date a decision was rendered and also shall present the reasons for his decision in writing to the Union.

Step 2

- **13.04** (a) Where a grievance concerning the interpretation, administration, application or alleged violation of a provision of the Agreement has not been settled at Step 1, the grievance shall, if so desired by the Union, be discussed at a meeting of the Grievance Committee. Each party will designate its representatives on this Committee.
- (b) Notice requesting a meeting of the Grievance Committee shall be given by the Union to the Director Labour Relations or to his designate, within the 42 calendar days following disposition of the matter at Step 1. The Company members of the Grievance Committee shall have 28 calendar days following presentation of the grievance in which to render a written decision.

Policy Grievances

- **13.05** If the interests of the Union as a party to this Agreement are affected by the Company's interpretation, administration, application or alleged violation of any provision of this Agreement, the Union may file a grievance which shall be filed at Step 1 and signed on behalf of the Union by the Local President from that Local, and shall be identified as a Policy Grievance. If the matter grieved is of broader application than a district, the Union may file a grievance at Step 2. Such grievance shall be signed by an Officer of the Union and shall be identified as a Policy Grievance. Such grievances shall be processed in accordance with the relevant provisions of Sections 13.03 and 13.04.
- **13.06** The Company may file a grievance at Step 2 of the grievance procedure. Such grievance shall be filed by the Director Labour Relations, or by his designate. For purposes of Company grievances, the provisions of Section 13.04 will be read and construed with necessary changes.

Time Limits

- **13.07** Any grievance not presented or processed by the Union in conformity with the mandatory time limits prescribed in this Article shall be deemed to have been abandoned and cannot be continued or reopened.
- **13.08** If the Company fails to respond or if the grievance is not settled within these time limits, the grievance may be processed immediately to the next step.
- **13.09** Time limits may be extended only by mutual consent, in writing.

General

- **13.10** The Company will not attempt to settle a grievance with the employee involved without prior notice to the Representative. Where, after such notice, an interview between the employee and management is to take place, the employee shall have the right to be accompanied by a Representative. No such grievance will be deemed to have been settled without the concurrence of the employee's Representative.
- 13.11 Priority will be given to holding grievance meetings virtually through the use of teleconferencing and/or videoconferencing. It is understood that the parties will not unreasonably refuse the use of virtual grievance meetings.

ARTICLE 14 ARBITRATION

- **14.01** Wherever a difference relating to the interpretation, application, administration or alleged violation of this Agreement arises between the Union and the Company, there shall be no stoppage of work and either party may, after exhausting the grievance procedure established by this Agreement, institute arbitration proceedings within 42 calendar days after the disposition of the matter by the Company in accordance with Section 13.04, but no later, in the manner set forth below, to have the difference in question determined. It is expressly agreed that the right to arbitration does not extend to any matters other than those concerning the interpretation, application, administration or alleged violation of this Agreement.
- **14.02** In the event that it becomes necessary to submit any matters to arbitration, the parties will endeavour in each instance to agree upon and appoint a single arbitrator within seven (7) days after the service by either party upon the other of written notice to arbitrate. If the parties fail to agree upon the appointment of an arbitrator, application may be made by either party, on written notice to the other, to the Minister of Labour for Canada, to appoint as arbitrator a person knowledgeable and experienced in the interpretation of written collective agreements.
- **14.03** The arbitrator shall not have any power to alter or change any of the provisions of this Agreement, or to substitute any new provisions for any existing provisions thereof, and in reaching his decision he shall be bound by the terms and provisions of this Agreement.
- **14.04** The arbitrator shall, before the hearing, require the representatives of the parties to attend before him to define the question of interpretation, application, administration or alleged violation to be arbitrated and to establish the procedure to be followed at the hearing. All steps in connection with the arbitration shall be taken as expeditiously as possible.
- **14.05** The parties shall each bear one-half (1/2) of the fees and expenses of the arbitrator and of any clerk or stenographer whom he may require and, except as aforesaid, each party shall bear all expenses incurred by it whether of witnesses, the attendance of witnesses and representatives, exhibits or otherwise.
- **14.06** The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on the parties, but such decision shall not have retroactive effect prior to the date of the occurrence on which the grievance is based.

Expedited Arbitration

- **14.07** Where the matter at issue is one relating to dismissal for just cause under Section 12.01, the matter may be submitted to the following process for expedited arbitration:
- (a) A list of Arbitrators, who shall be mutually agreed to by the parties, will be established.
- b) One (1) day in each calendar month, with the exception of July and August, shall be scheduled on dates mutually agreed to by the parties as potential hearing days for a period of six (6) months in advance for each of the succeeding six (6) months.
- (c) The Union shall assign the grievance to be heard to Arbitration no later than sixty (60) calendar days prior to its sitting. In the event that no grievance is assigned to an Arbitrator sixty (60) days prior to the hearing date, that hearing date shall be cancelled.

ARTICLE 15 COST OF LIVING ALLOWANCE

Not in Force for Term of Present Collective Agreement:

- **15.01** If the August 1995 Consumer Price Index (C.P.I.) exceeds the C.P.I. for August 1994 by more than 2.2%, then all basic rates of pay in effect on October 31, 1995 will be increased effective in November 1995 by a percentage figure equal to the difference between the percentage increase in the C.P.I. and 2.2%.
- **15.02** If the August 1996 Consumer Price Index (C.P.I.) exceeds the C.P.I. for August 1995 by more than 3.2%, then all basic rates of pay in effect on October 31, 1996 will be increased effective in November 1996 by a percentage figure equal to the difference between the percentage increase in the C.P.I. and 3.2%.
- **15.03** The C.P.I. used for purposes of this Article shall be the C.P.I. Canada All Items (1986 = 100) as published by Statistics Canada or any successor Department or Agency.
- **15.04** Should the C.P.I. be amended or discontinued prior to September 1995, the parties agree to consult to determine a means to give effect to the intention of this Article.

ARTICLE 16 EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

16.01 The Company agrees to supply each employee with a copy of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 17 VALIDITY OF AGREEMENT

17.01 In the event of any provision of this Agreement or of any of the practices established hereby being or being held to be contrary to the provisions of any applicable law now or hereafter enacted, this Agreement shall not be nor be deemed to be abrogated but shall be amended so as to make it conform to the requirements of any such law.

ARTICLE 18 APPLICATION

- **18.01** The Company agrees to recognize the Union as the sole collective bargaining agent for employees covered by this Agreement.
- **18.02** Where the Company adds a new occupation to the unit, Appendix A shall be deemed to be amended to include that new occupation upon notification to the Union.

ARTICLE 19 DEDUCTION OF REGULAR DUES

- **19.01** Subject to the provisions of this Article, the Company will, in each pay period, deduct an amount equivalent to the regular Union dues from the pay of all employees in the bargaining unit.
- **19.02** Where an employee does not have sufficient earnings in respect of any pay period to permit deductions, the Company shall not be obligated to make such deductions from subsequent earnings.
- **19.03** The Company will cease making such deductions when an employee is assigned to a position not covered by an Agreement with the Union, with the exception of employees who are assigned to an acting or temporary management position for three (3) months or less.
- **19.04** The amount of regular Union dues shall be such amount as may from time to time be certified to the Company, in a form approved by the Company, by an Officer of the Union.

- **19.05** As soon as possible after the end of each pay period, the Company will remit to the Treasurer of the Union, by wire transfer, the amount so deducted.
- **19.06** Regular Union dues means the dues established as the dues payable and shall not include any initiation fee, insurance premium or special levy.
- **19.07** The Union agrees to indemnify and save the Company harmless against any claim or liability arising out of the application of this Article.

ARTICLE 20 EMPLOYEE REPRESENTATIVES

- **20.01** The number of Representatives shall not exceed 60. The Union agrees to notify the Company of the name of each Representative and of the Company operating unit in which he acts as a Representative. A Representative shall not act as such during working time until the Company has been notified of his appointment.
- **20.02** Before changing the status of any Representative who is to continue in the Company's employ, so as to render him ineligible to represent his voting unit, such Representative shall be allowed reasonable time to transfer his duties as a Representative to his successor.

ARTICLE 21 NOTIFICATION TO THE UNION

- **21.01** The Company agrees to advise the Representative concerned when an employee is hired, transferred, reclassified, or promoted to a management position. Such advice will be given to the Representative at the time the employee is informed or immediately thereafter.
- **21.02** (a) Subject to the provisions of Section 21.03, the Company agrees to give as much prior notice as circumstances permit to the Representative of the employee concerned of any contemplated disciplinary or non-disciplinary measure.
- (b) When a meeting is conducted to announce a disciplinary measure as described in Section 12.01 to an employee, it is agreed that the Representative of the Union must be invited to attend the meeting, unless the employee concerned objects.
- **21.03** Where the Company deems it necessary to take immediate action in dismissing, or suspending, or demoting, any employee, the Company shall thereafter immediately advise and review the case with the Representative of the employee concerned.
- **21.04** The Company agrees to supply on **a bi-monthly** basis, to designated Officers of the Union, a list showing the names and net credited service date of all employees eligible for membership in the Union.
- **21.05** The Company will also provide monthly, a list of names and the net credited service date of all eligible employees added, deleted or changed from the annual list.
- **21.06** The Company agrees to send, on September 15th of each year, to designated Officers of the Union, a list of Company e-mail addresses as shown on Company records of all employees in the bargaining unit.

Security Interviews

- **21.07** The Company agrees that:
- (a) an employee's leader will inform him, prior to any Security interview, that he is entitled to be accompanied by a Representative of the Union;
- (b) unless the employee involved objects, the Representative of the Union will be informed prior to any interview to be conducted by Security with an employee of the bargaining unit;

- (c) the employee, unless he objects, shall be granted immediately prior to a Security interview a maximum of 15 minutes to confer with the Representative of the Union;
- (d) where the employee involved consents, the Representative of the Union may attend the Security interview as an observer, but not as a participant.

ARTICLE 22 HEALTH AND SAFETY

- **22.01** Both parties to this Agreement acknowledge their common concern for maintaining a healthy and safe working environment.
- **22.02** The Company accepts the responsibility of making adequate and reasonable provisions for the health and safety of employees during their working hours. The Company will welcome suggestions by the Union regarding the health and safety of employees.
- **22.03** It is the employee's responsibility, subject to Company regulations and practices, to take all reasonable and necessary measures to ensure his safety; no employee is required to work in dangerous conditions or to use dangerous equipment.

Health and Safety Committees

- **22.04** (a) The Corporate Health and Safety Committee is composed of one (1) Unifor Representative designated by the Union and one (1) representative of the Company.
- (b) The Corporate Health and Safety Committee will be responsible for establishing its own rules and procedures, as well as the rules and procedures of the Local Health and Safety Committees, their scope of responsibility, frequency of meetings and any other similar matter.
- **22.05** The Local Health and Safety Committees are composed in equal numbers of employees and leaders of the Company.
- **22.06** Except for the number of Committees and the frequency of meetings, the rules for both the Corporate Health and Safety Committee and the Local Health and Safety Committees, as referred to in Subsection 22.04 (b) shall mean the powers and obligations of joint Health and Safety Committees found in Part II of the Canada Labour Code.
- **22.07** It is clearly understood that relevant health and safety issues which have implications that transcend local concerns will be referred to the Corporate Health and Safety Committee together with any documentation dealing with these issues.

Visual Display Terminal

22.08 Any Regular employee who is pregnant, and who is regularly scheduled to work at a visual display terminal (VDT) and does not wish to work at a VDT during her pregnancy may, subject to Company practices, elect either to be assigned other work in the bargaining unit or be granted a leave of absence without pay.

ARTICLE 23 TIME ALLOWANCE

23.01 The Company agrees that:

(a) An employee who has, or believes he has a grievance may confer with his Representative or with management during his scheduled working hours, without deduction of the time so occupied in the computation of the time worked for the Company, and without deduction of wages in respect thereof; provided, however, that each employee must arrange with his immediate leader, subject to service requirements, for all time off the job required for the above purposes.

- (b) A Representative may discuss a grievance with a grievor or with management, or attend meetings with the Company on behalf of the Union, during his scheduled working hours, without deduction of the time so occupied in the computation of the time worked for the Company, and without deduction of wages in respect thereof; provided, however, that the Representative must arrange with his immediate leader, subject to service requirements, for all time off the job required for the above purposes.
- **23.02** (a) The Union shall transmit in writing to the Company the names of those Representatives, which includes Local Presidents, responsible for submitting to the Union's Bargaining Committee the proposed demands of employees. Such Representatives may attend pre-bargaining meetings held by the Union for such purpose without deduction of the time so occupied in the computation of the time worked for the Company, and without deduction of wages in respect thereof, up to a maximum of two (2) days, three (3) days in the case of Local Presidents, from their regularly scheduled tours of duty, provided that the Company is given the name of each Representative at least two (2) weeks before the date the time off is to begin.
- (b) It is agreed that the total of all such pre-bargaining time off for all Representatives calculated together shall not exceed 50 days.
- **23.03** An authorized bargaining Representative of the Union may have time off from work during his scheduled working hours for purposes of bargaining, without deduction of the time so occupied in the computation of the time worked for the Company, and without deduction of wages in respect thereof; provided that such time is actually devoted to collective bargaining with management, but only until the expiry date of this Collective Agreement, or the date that conciliation assistance is requested, whichever is later.
- **23.04** (a) Representatives may, without deduction of the time so occupied in the computation of the time worked for the Company, attend to other business of the Union during scheduled working hours, provided that each Representative must arrange with his immediate leader, subject to service requirements, for all time off the job, not to exceed 30 consecutive calendar days, required for the above purpose and providing such business is concerned with the bargaining unit covered by this Agreement. All time off so required will be granted as time off without pay, however;
- (b) the Company will pay the Representative, on behalf of the Union, at his basic rate of pay for all time off without pay to attend to other business of the Union. Any amount so paid by the Company will be billed to the Union, which shall remit that amount to the Company within 30 days of receipt of the bill;
- (c) requests for time off without pay to attend to other business of the Union, in excess of five (5) days, must be submitted to the Representative's immediate leader at least 21 days prior to the date requested for the commencement of the time off without pay.

ARTICLE 24 MEETINGS

- **24.01** Meetings between the authorized bargaining Representatives of the Union and the designated bargaining Representatives of the Company shall be held as required, on reasonable notice by either party.
- **24.02** At such meetings, the number of persons shall not exceed seven (7) for the Company and seven (7) for the Union. Any increase to the number of persons at the bargaining table shall be by mutual agreement between the parties.

ARTICLE 25 BARGAINING PROCEDURE

- **25.01** (a) All negotiations with a view to the completion of a Collective Agreement or to effecting changes or modifications in this Agreement shall be conducted between the authorized bargaining Representatives of the Union on the one hand and the designated bargaining Representatives of the Company on the other.
- (b) In addition to bargaining sessions conducted for renewal of the Collective Agreement, the process of consultation developed and utilized by the parties since 1953, is an accepted forum for addressing the on-going concerns of the parties.

25.02 No agreement resulting from collective bargaining as herein provided shall be deemed to have been concluded until it is reduced to writing and signed by the authorized bargaining Representatives of the Union and by the designated bargaining Representatives of the Company, and an agreement so signed shall take effect as and from the effective date specified therein.

ARTICLE 26 EXPENSES

26.01 Each party shall bear the expenses incurred by its own Representatives in attending meetings or proceedings contemplated by this Agreement, and all joint expenses incurred in respect of such meetings and proceedings shall be borne by the parties in equal shares.

ARTICLE 27 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

27.01 The Company has the exclusive right and responsibility to manage its operations in all respects and in accordance with its commitments and responsibilities to the public, to its customers and shareholders, to conduct its business efficiently and to direct the working forces and, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, it has the right to hire, promote, transfer, demote or lay-off employees, and to suspend, discharge or otherwise discipline employees. The Company agrees that any exercise of these rights shall not contravene the provisions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 28 WORKFORCE ADJUSTMENT

- **28.01** Where any condition arises which reduces the work load to the extent that a general program of lay-offs or spreading the work is contemplated, the Company shall endeavour to reach an agreement with the Union as to whether a plan of part-timing, lay-offs or a combination of the two (2) shall be put into effect.
- **28.02** In the event that an agreement as to a plan cannot be reached within a period of 30 days after the matter has been submitted to the Union, the Company may proceed on a plan of part-timing to the extent it deems necessary.
- **28.03** It is expressly understood, however, that if the Company proceeds on a plan of part-timing at the expiration of the 30-day period or later as prescribed in this Article, negotiations toward an agreement relating to a force adjustment plan shall be resumed at any time at the request of either party. Similarly, after agreement has been reached as to a plan of force adjustment, either party may resume negotiations at any time in an effort to obtain agreement upon modifications of the plan then in effect.

ARTICLE 29 TECHNOLOGICAL CHANGE

- **29.01** The parties agree that they will continue the process of consultation in force since 1953 in order to assist employees affected by any technological change to adjust to the effects thereof and that, therefore, Sections 52, 54 and 55 of the Canada Labour Code shall not apply during the term of this Agreement.
- 29.02 The parties further agree that in cases where, as a result of technological change, the service of an employee is no longer required beyond a specified date because of lack of work or the discontinuance of a function, the Workforce Adjustment Plan concluded by the parties will apply.
- 29.03 The Company agrees to provide as much advance notice as is practicable but, not less than four (4) weeks' notice to the Union of the introduction or implementation of technological change when it will result in significant changes in the employment status or working conditions of the employees.
- 29.04 It is understood that the purpose of these meetings is to evaluate the alternatives for the affected employees, including but not limited to, transfer into other positions, training, displacement, if applicable.

29.05 The Company will provide the following information:

- 1. the nature of the technological change;
- 2. the date or dates on which the change will take effect;
- 3. the location or locations involved;
- 4. the approximate number and profiles of employees likely to be affected by the technological change;
- 5. the effect that the technological change is likely to have on the terms and conditions of employment of the employees affected; and
- 6. to the extent available, information will be provided about the potential number of layoffs, new jobs or classifications to be created, if any, as a result of the proposed technological change.
- 29.06 As soon as reasonably practicable after notice is given under section 29.03, the Company shall consult meaningfully with the Union concerning the rationale for the change and the topics referred to in section 29.04 on each group of employees, including possible training.

ARTICLE 30 BENEFITS

- **30.01** The Company agrees to review with the Union, prior to its implementation, any change in the level of benefits provided to employees covered by this Agreement under the following:
 - the Pension Plan:
 - the health, life and accident insurance coverage under the Omniflex Benefits Program;
 - the Disability Plans.

ARTICLE 31 DURATION

- **31.01** This Agreement shall become effective October 12, **2023**, except as otherwise herein provided, and shall remain in full force and effect up to and including **December 31, 2026**.
- **31.02** This Agreement, unless terminated at the expiry of the said term by written notice given by either party to the other at least sixty days prior to the expiry of the said term, shall continue in full force and effect thereafter until terminated at any time by at least sixty days prior written notice given by either party to the other.
- **31.03** Notice to terminate under this Article shall be effectively given if addressed by the Company to the President of Unifor, 5915 Airport Road, suite 510, Mississauga, Ontario, L4V 1T1 or by the Union to the Director of Labour Relations, Bell Canada, 1 carrefour Alexander Graham Bell, Tour A-7, Verdun, Québec, H3E 3B3 and in either case is received at least sixty days prior to the termination date specified therein.

WITNESS CLAUSE

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized Representatives this 31st day of October 2023.

Kato Nsangwa Mumba

Terry Deighton

Robin Dudley

Annie Gazaille

Annie Gazaille

Stephanie Connelly

Sonny Malhotra

LIST OF OCCUPATIONS

COMMUNICATIONS SALES EMPLOYEES

Consumer Market

Direct Marketing Associate

Direct Marketing Associate – Loyalty Resolution

Team Coordinator

Business Market

Sales Representative

Inside Sales Representative

LIST OF LOCALITIES

Montréal

Ottawa

Toronto

Verdun

Mississauga

WAGE SCHEDULE WEEKLY BASIC RATES OF PAY

DIRECT MARKETING ASSOCIATE - CONSUMER MARKET /LOYALTY RESOLUTION

	January 1, 2023	January 1, 2024	January 1, 2025	January 1, 2026
Increase	3.25%	2.50%	2.50%	2.50%
Step	Weekly Rate	Weekly Rate	Weekly Rate	Weekly Rate
1	652.4659	668.7776	685.4970	702.6344
2	680.5416	697.5551	714.9940	732.8688
3	775.6068	795.0523	814.9286	835.3018

Note: The interval from one (1) step to the next step shall be six (6) months.

WAGE SCHEDULE HOURLY BASIC RATES OF PAY

DIRECT MARKETING ASSOCIATE - CONSUMER MARKET / LOYALTY RESOLUTION

	January 1, 2023	January 1, 2024	January 1, 2025	January 1, 2026
Increase	3.25%	2.50%	2.50%	2.50%
Step	Hourly Rate	Hourly Rate	Hourly Rate	Hourly Rate
1	17.3991	17.8341	18.2799	18.7369
2	18.1478	18.6015	19.0665	19.5432
3	20.6843	21.2014	21.7314	22.2747

Note: The interval from one (1) step to the next step shall be six (6) months.

WAGE SCHEDULE WEEKLY BASIC RATES OF PAY

TEAM COORDINATOR - CONSUMER MARKET

	January 1, 2023	January 1, 2024	January 1, 2025	January 1, 2026
Increase	3.25%	2.50%	2.50%	2.50%
Step	Weekly Rate	Weekly Rate	Weekly Rate	Weekly Rate
1	864.8685	886.4902	908.6524	931.3687
2	883.0043	905.0794	927.7064	950.8991
3	942.7977	966.3676	990.5268	1015.2900

Note: The interval from one (1) step to the next step shall be six (6) months.

WAGE SCHEDULE HOURLY BASIC RATES OF PAY

TEAM COORDINATOR - CONSUMER MARKET

	January 1, 2023	January 1, 2024	January 1, 2025	January 1, 2026
Increase	3.25%	2.50%	2.50%	2.50%
Step	Hourly Rate	Hourly Rate	Hourly Rate	Hourly Rate
1	23.0632	23.6397	24.2307	24.8365
2	23.5468	24.1355	24.7388	25.3573
3	25.1413	25.7698	26.4140	27.0744

Note: The interval from one (1) step to the next step shall be six (6) months.

WAGE SCHEDULE WEEKLY BASIC RATES OF PAY

SALES REPRESENTATIVE

	January 1, 2023	January 1, 2024	January 1, 2025	January 1, 2026
Increase	3.25%	2.50%	2.50%	2.50%
Step	Weekly Rate	Weekly Rate	Weekly Rate	Weekly Rate
1	837.2697	858.2015	879.6565	901.6479
2	878.5052	900.4678	922.9795	946.0540
3	921.2546	944.2859	967.8931	992.0904
4	974.2567	998.6131	1023.5784	1049.1679
5	1030.9758	1056.7502	1083.1689	1110.2481
6	1090.1109	1117.3637	1145.2978	1173.9302
7	1183.2527	1212.8341	1243.1549	1274.2338

Note: The interval from one (1) step to the next shall be twelve (12) months.

WAGE SCHEDULE HOURLY BASIC RATES OF PAY

SALES REPRESENTATIVE

	January 1, 2023	January 1, 2024	January 1, 2025	January 1, 2026
Increase	3.25%	2.50%	2.50%	2.50%
Step	Hourly Rate	Hourly Rate	Hourly Rate	Hourly Rate
1	22.3272	22.8854	23.4575	24.0439
2	23.4268	24.0125	24.6128	25.2281
3	24.5668	25.1810	25.8105	26.4557
4	25.9802	26.6297	27.2954	27.9778
5	27.4927	28.1800	28.8845	29.6066
6	29.0696	29.7964	30.5413	31.3048
7	31.5534	32.3422	33.1508	33.9796

Note: The interval from one (1) step to the next shall be twelve (12) months.

WAGE SCHEDULE WEEKLY BASIC RATES OF PAY

INSIDE SALES REPRESENTATIVE

	January 1, 2023	January 1, 2024	January 1, 2025	January 1, 2026
Increase	3.25%	2.50%	2.50%	2.50%
Step	Weekly Rate	Weekly Rate	Weekly Rate	Weekly Rate
1	951.0951	974.8725	999.2443	1024.2254
2	999.8769	1024.8738	1050.4956	1076.7580
3	1058.2996	1084.7571	1111.8760	1139.6729
4	1118.6931	1146.6604	1175.3269	1204.7101
5	1174.6688	1204.0355	1234.1364	1264.9898
6	1233.3393	1264.1728	1295.7771	1328.1715
7	1268.2133	1299.9186	1332.4166	1365.7270

Note: The interval from one (1) step to the next shall be twelve (12) months.

WAGE SCHEDULE HOURLY BASIC RATES OF PAY

INDISE SALES REPRESENTATIVE

	January 1, 2023	January 1, 2024	January 1, 2025	January 1, 2026
Increase	3.25%	2.50%	2.50%	2.50%
Step	Hourly Rate	Hourly Rate	Hourly Rate	Hourly Rate
1	25.3625	25.9966	26.6465	27.3127
2	26.6634	27.3300	28.0132	28.7135
3	28.2213	28.9269	29.6500	30.3913
4	29.8318	30.5776	31.3421	32.1256
5	31.3245	32.1076	32.9103	33.7331
6	32.8890	33.7113	34.5541	35.4179
7	33.8190	34.6645	35.5311	36.4194

Note: The interval from one (1) step to the next shall be twelve (12) months.

ABSENCE DUE TO FAMILY OR PERSONAL EMERGENCIES

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN

BELL CANADA

AND

UNIFOR

This is to confirm our understanding reached during bargaining for the renewal of the Communications Sales Employees Collective Agreement.

The Company and the Union recognize that employees have family and personal obligations and emergencies that are unpredictable and beyond their control could lead to unpaid absences from work:

- home conditions (for example: flood, fire);
- personal emergencies (for example : car accident, theft or burglary)
- emergencies (for example: sickness of a child or parent, school or daycare closure);
- medical or dental appointments that cannot be scheduled outside of working hours;
- interruption or failure of public transportation;
- road closure due to a major accident.

The Union recognizes that it is the employees' responsibility to find alternatives so as to avoid absences from work and to take the necessary measures in order to return to work as soon as possible.

The Union recognizes that local management has the right to inquire as to the reason of the absence and to request, in certain cases when it deems it necessary, that the employee provide justification.

Where the criteria set forth in this **Memorandum of Agreement** are met, the Company confirms that local management should authorize an absence for family or personal emergency.

It is also understood that, in order to minimize the financial impact on the employee, and depending on the circumstances, local management may authorize the employee to use paid time owing.

The parties also agree that any differences concerning this Letter of Intent may be brought to the Joint Labour Relations Committee for discussion.

Signed on the 31st of October 2023.

FOR BELL CANADA FOR UNIFOR

Terry Deighton Robin Dudley

<u>APPENDIX C – WAGE SCHEDULE BASE SALARY INCREASES (NEW)</u> <u>MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT</u>

BELL CANADA

AND

UNIFOR

This is to confirm the Company's intention to increase salaries during the new collective agreement.

- 3.25% retroactive to January 1, 2023,
- 2.50% effective on January 1, 2024,
- 2.50% effective on January 1, 2025,
- 2.50% effective on January 1, 2026.

To be eligible for retroactivity to January 1, 2023, the employee must be active or on a leave of absence authorized by the Company on the date of the ratification of the collective agreement.

Employees on authorized leave (short-term and long-term sick leave, childcare leave, parental leave) on the date of payment of each increase mentioned above will receive their increase upon return to work.

Signed on the 31st of October 2023.

FOR BELL CANADA

FOR UNIFOR

Terry Deighton

Robin Dudley

BELL WORKWAYS (NEW)

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN

BELL CANADA

AND

UNIFOR

In the context of the pandemic, Bell Canada introduced the Bell Workways Policy which is designed to provide employees with the opportunity to more effectively manage work, family and other life commitments by providing alternative approaches to where and when work gets done, while ensuring we continue to meet Bell's business objectives and deliver strong results.

As a result of the Bell Workways Policy, each employee has been assigned a Bell Workways Profile based on their role, which is either Remote, Mobile or Full-Time in office.

Regardless of an employee's workways profile, all provisions of the Collective Agreement continue to apply. As per section 21.04 of the collective agreement, the bi-monthly employees' list provided to the Union will now include the employees' Workways profile.

Participation in a Remote or Mobile profile under the Bell Workways Policy is voluntary for employees.

General

Any reference to the Bell Workways Policy in this MOA does not have the effect of incorporating the Policy in the Collective Agreement. However, the employees will be allowed to file grievances if the company acted arbitrarily, in a discriminatory manner or in bad faith in applying the Bell Workways policy.

All individual situations that are not covered by this MOA will be addressed by either parties at a local level.

Any disagreement on the terms of this Memorandum of Agreement may be brought to the Joint Labour Relations Committee for discussion.

Bell commits to maintain the Bell Workways Policy, in effect on October 12, 2023, as is for communication sales employees for the duration of this Collective Agreement. For further clarity, an employee who respects the terms of the Bell Workways policy will remain on his Bell Workways profile for the duration of this collective agreement. This MOA will expire at the end of this collective agreement, which expires on December 31, 2026.

FOR UNIFOR

Signed on the 31st of October 2023.

FOR BELL CANADA

Terry Deighton Robin Dudley

EMPLOYEE RECLASSIFICATIONS

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN

BELL CANADA

AND

UNIFOR

It is understood that the Company will proceed with the reclassification of the **agreed upon list** of Regular Part-Time status employees to Regular Full-Time status.

It is understood and agreed that all reclassifications done under this agreement shall take place in the employee's current job and at his current work location.

To be reclassified under these provisions, the employee must meet job requirements, **not have an active disciplinary record** and/or not be subject to a performance improvement plan.

Employee reclassifications must be completed no later than three months following the signature of the collective agreement.

This memorandum of agreement is not an integral part of the collective agreement.

FOR UNIFOR

Signed on 31st of October 2023.

FOR BELL CANADA

FOR BELL CANADA FOR UNIFOR

Terry Deighton Robin Dudley

MANAGERS TAKING LIVE CALLS

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN

BELL CANADA

AND

UNIFOR

In light of the Company's objective to enhance the coaching and success of employees and also maximize revenue opportunities, the parties agree that managers who lead unionized sales employees on a daily basis require an understanding of the opportunities associated with customer calls.

As such, the parties agree that it is in their common interest that managers take a limited number of live calls during one (1) hour every month. During these live calls, managers will provide guidance in addressing the needs of the customer while maximizing the revenues from each call.

The calls taken by the managers will not reduce the work sales employees or the number of calls available in the queue. Furthermore, managers will not take calls in an effort to maintain service levels.

The management team will use these calls **and work in collaboration with the Team Coordinators** to determine coaching opportunities for the employees as well as potential process improvement opportunities. Process improvement opportunities will be reviewed with the Union should they impact employees' working conditions.

Signed on the 31st of October 2023.

FOR BELL CANADA	FOR UNIFOR
Toph	
Terry Deighton	Robin Dudley

MENTAL HEALTH

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN

BELL CANADA

AND

UNIFOR

In September 2010, Bell Let's Talk began a new conversation about Canada's mental health. At that time, most people were not talking about mental illness. But the numbers spoke volumes about the urgent need for action. Millions of Canadians, including leading personalities engaged in an open discussion about mental illness, offering new ideas and hope for those who struggle, with numbers growing every year. Building on more than ten years of increased awareness and acceptance around mental health, Bell Let's Talk is focused on engaging Canadians to take action to create positive change in mental health.

Given Bell Canada's leadership in the area of Mental Health, Bell Canada and Unifor recognize the importance of ensuring a workplace culture which promotes and improves the mental health of all employees in the workplace. Bell Canada and Unifor have a common interest in promoting and enhancing a working relationship consistent with the principles of the Bell Let's Talk initiative.

In light of the above, Bell Canada and Unifor encourage Local Presidents to have open discussions with Directors (CP4 leaders) on any mental health issues and/or challenges their members may be facing. In turn, Directors will take action regarding the concerns brought by the Union, continue to educate and engage with the managers and further support employees through our workplace policies and practices, direct employees to access the interactive resources and benefits to support their mental health and that of their immediate family members.

Signed on the 31st of October 2023.

FOR BELL CANADA

Terry Deighton

FOR UNIFOR

Robin Dudley

OUTSOURCING / CONTRACTING OUT

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN:

UNIFOR

AND

BELL CANADA

Bell Canada is evolving in a very competitive marketplace and the parties recognize that in order to remain successful, Bell Canada needs to manage its business in the most efficient manner. The parties agree that, amongst other things, efficiency requires flexibility in the workforce, the assignment of work and Bell's ability to assign employees according to customer and business needs.

It is understood that Bell Canada has the right to outsource or contract out any of the work normally performed by employees included in the Communications Sales Employees bargaining unit at any time and under its own terms, subject to the present Memorandum of Agreement.

The Company's preference is to maintain employment internally. In light of this, the intent of this Memorandum of Agreement is to open the dialogue between the parties to discuss different measures of job security for existing Regular Bell Canada employees in the Communications Sales Employees bargaining, in the event that Bell Canada decides to outsource or contract out any of the work normally performed by employees included in that bargaining unit.

The parties agree that before Bell Canada outsources or contracts out any work normally performed by employees in the Communications Sales Employees bargaining unit, the Company shall meet with the Union's National representative and impacted Local Presidents to discuss, review and exchange on issues associated with outsourcing or contracting out.

The objective of these meetings is to allow the parties to work together to try to strike the right balance between the interests of the customers, the Company and the employees, with respect to outsourcing or the use of subcontractors. The purpose will also be to consider how it can be avoided that, as a direct result of the outsourcing or contracting out of any work usually performed by employees in the Communications Sales Employees bargaining unit, regular employees are laid off.

In the event that parties still disagree after consulting on the outsourcing of work or the use of subcontractors, the parties acknowledge that Bell Canada will have full flexibility to proceed with the outsourcing or contracting out the work usually performed by employees in the Communications Sales Employees Collective Agreement.

In the event that Regular employees are declared surplus by the Company as a result of an outsourcing or contracting out initiative, the Memorandum of Agreement Workforce Adjustment will apply.

The parties agree that in situations where any differences concerning the interpretation or application of this Memorandum of Agreement arise, Unifor can file a grievance that shall be processed through expedited arbitration. The matter shall be heard by an arbitrator on a date mutually agreed to by the parties.

General

Use in this Memorandum of Agreement of the feminine or masculine gender shall be construed as including both female and male employees, and not as specific sex designations.

EOD LINIEOD

Signed on the 31st of October 2023.

EOD DELL CANADA

I ON BELL CANADA	1 OK ONII OK
To Day	1
Terry Deighton	Robin Dudley

PAID EDUCATIONAL LEAVE

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN

BELL CANADA

<u>AND</u>

UNIFOR

Effective January 1, 2019, the Company agrees to pay into a special fund an amount of two cents (\$0.02) per hour for regular hours to provide for a Unifor Paid Education Leave (PEL) program. Effective January 1, 2021 the amount shall be increased to three (\$0.03) cents per hour.

Such payment will be remitted on a regular basis into a trust fund established by Unifor effective from the date of ratification. Payments will be sent by the Company to the following address:

Unifor Paid Education Leave Program 115 Gordon Baker Road Toronto ON, M2H 0A8

Candidates for PEL shall be selected by the Union to attend. The Union will provide written confirmation to the Company of such selection. Employees on PEL leave of absence will continue to accrue seniority and service.

Signed on the 31st of October 2023.

FOR BELL CANADA	FOR UNIFOR
To Day	
Terry Deighton	Robin Dudley

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT (NEW)

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN

BELL CANADA

AND

UNIFOR

The Company has the exclusive right and power to manage the performance of the employees, in accordance with the Collective Agreement.

The parties agree that, amongst other things, performance management requires an effective and reasonable performance management system that maximizes the potential and contribution of every employee.

In achieving this objective, any performance management system will require clear job expectations and objectives, and ongoing feedback.

The objective of the ongoing feedback and evaluation process will be to ensure that employees understand job expectations and receive ongoing feedback on their performance. The process will include reasonable measurements of employees' performance and will be linked to business objectives and ultimately to customer service.

When the Company proceeds with the addition, removal or change in weighting of a performance indicator impacting employee's performance assessment, the Company will provide the Union and employees an advance notice of the aforementioned change in performance indicator. The parties will have a meaningful discussion on the changes to the performance indicators made by the Company.

Appropriate and timely coaching and training will also be provided to employees to assist them on the path of being successful and to identify areas of improvement. There will be clear and reasonable opportunities to improve where an employee is not able to meet job expectations.

The objective of the performance management process is to ensure that employees have the right skills and competencies to succeed in their current jobs.

Signed on the 31st of October 2023.

FOR BELL CANADA FOR UNIFOR

Terry Deighton Robin Dudley

RACIAL JUSTICE ADVOCATE (NEW)

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN

BELL CANADA

AND

UNIFOR

REPRESENTING COMMUNICATIONS SALES EMPLOYEES

The Company and Unifor are committed to take action and work toward eradicating racism in all forms and for all working people. The Company has undertaken numerous initiatives in the recent years to educate employees and managers on building an inclusive culture and eliminating bias and microaggressions.

Bell and Unifor recognize the importance of ensuring that employees from the Black, Indigenous and People of Color community are aware of the various support groups available to them, that they can participate in activities and provide their input. Furthermore, the parties agree to work together to promote a diverse workforce, prevent racisms and intervene quickly in situations where employees are subject to racial discrimination and racial violence.

In support of the above, Bell and Unifor agree to the following:

Racial Justice Advocate

The parties agree as follows:

- 1. The Union identified a Racial Justice Advocate for the employees (1 per province) in the Clerical and Associated Employees' Bargaining Unit.
- 2. Unifor assigned qualified persons to act as a Racial Justice Advocates for clerical and associated employees.
- 3. It is understood that the clerical and associated employees' Racial Justice Advocate will provide support to employees in the Communications Sales Employees' bargaining unit.
- 4. The Racial Justice Advocates are workplace representatives who will assist and provide support for Black, Indigenous, and People of Color whose role in the workplace will include:
 - Listening;
 - Promoting access to services provided by the employer and community and culturally appropriate services;
 - Collaborate with the Company on its Diversity and Inclusion initiatives;
 - Networking with allied organizations and local community partners;
 - Collaborate with the Company to eliminate racial discrimination and violence in the workplace; and
 - Direct the employees to the Company's or community's appropriate support resources, processes, and policies.
- The Company and Unifor agree to discuss concerns or issues identified by the Racial Justice Advocate regarding racism or support available towards racialized employees during its JLRC Meetings.

Signed on the 31st of October 2023.

FOR BELL CANADA

FOR UNIFOR

Terry Deighton

Robin Dudley

VIOLENCE OR ABUSE IN PERSONAL LIFE

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN:

BELL CANADA AND

UNIFOR

The Company recognizes that employees sometimes face situations of violence or abuse in their personal life that may affect their attendance or performance at work. For that reason, the Company agrees, when there is adequate and timely verification from a recognized professional (i.e. doctor, lawyer, registered counsellor), an employee who is in an abusive or violent situation will not be subject to discipline if the absence can be linked to the abusive or violent situation. Absences which are not covered by the provisions of article 9 will be granted as absence with pay, up to a maximum of five (5) days per calendar year.

Signed on the 31st of October 2023.

FOR BELL CANADA FO	ЭR	UNIFO)F
--------------------	----	-------	----

Terry Deighton Robin Dudley

WAGE PROTECTION INSIDE SALES REPRESENTATIVE POSITION

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN:

BELL CANADA

AND

UNIFOR

The parties acknowledge that on March 8, 2010, the new position of Internal Sales Representative was created and included in Appendix A of the Communication Sales Employees collective agreement.

There are four (4) former Account Executives who still hold the position of Internal Sales Representative.

These four (4) employees will have their base salary wage protected until December 31, 2026.

In lieu of the bargained wage increases, these employees will receive a \$750 lump sum each year.

Signed on the 31st of October 2023.

FOR BELL CANADA

FOR UNIFOR

Terry Deighton

Robin Dudley

WOMEN UNION SUPPORT ADVOCATE

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN

BELL CANADA

AND

UNIFOR

The parties agree as follows:

- 1. Women, from the Communication Sales Employees bargaining unit facing situations of domestic violence or abuse may confer with a Women Union Support Advocate who can direct the employee towards the appropriate support mechanisms. The time required for the Women's advocate to carry out their role will be paid by the company.
- 2. The Company and the Union shall agree on reasonable guidelines within 30 days following the signing of this Memorandum of Agreement.
- 3. The number of Women Union Support Advocates shall not exceed three (3). Two (2) will be located in Ontario and one (1) in Quebec.
- 4. The company will ensure that Women's advocates will be afforded the time off required for training which will be paid by the Union.

FOR UNIFOR

Signed on the 31st of October 2023.

FOR BELL CANADA Terry Deighton Robin Dudley

WORKFORCE ADJUSTMENT

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN:

BELL CANADA

AND

UNIFOR

This is to confirm our agreement, and reflects discussions which were held during bargaining with respect to the process to be implemented for dealing with workforce adjustment issues during the term of the Collective Agreement of the Communications Sales Employees' bargaining unit.

The Company may have to adjust its Sales workforce as the marketplace becomes more competitive and as the challenges to meet customers' needs increase the pressure to be the best choice as a telecom provider.

Should a corporate separation program be offered during the term of the Collective Agreement, the Company will initiate discussions with the Union in a consultative mode. The parties will determine whether elements of the corporate separation program corresponding to this Memorandum of Agreement would be more beneficial and applicable to the Communications Sales bargaining unit.

The Company will seek the involvement of the Union early in the process when it becomes clear that workforce adjustment measures will be required and the Unifor Local President of the group impacted by a workforce adjustment will remain involved and informed of developments in the management of the workforce throughout the process.

The following Workforce Adjustment guidelines are to be used when there is a need for a reduction in staff levels. The guidelines are to be applied in sequence to ensure all steps have been followed before and after declaring any Regular employee surplus.

1. Initial notification to the Union

When a workforce reduction is foreseen, the CP4 leader will advise the Unifor Local President concerned, as soon as possible, and share information related to the possible impact on human resources.

2. Definition of an Entity

The CP4 leader, with the assistance of his Human Resources / Labour Relations consultant, will clearly identify a possible entity within a specific market segment affected by a workforce reduction. The entity may be defined as a group of employees who carry out similar work and who could be transferred from one position to another without impairing operations or customer relationships.

The following points must be taken into consideration when defining an entity:

- reason for the required workforce reduction
- specific work procedures involved
- positions affected
- · geographic locations affected

Prior to notifying any impacted employee, the CP4 leader will consult the Unifor Local President concerned to discuss and review the criteria used to define the entity. Once the CP4 leader has considered the Unifor Local President's input, he will make a final decision on what the entity will be.

3. Encouraging Transfer Requests

The CP4 leader or his representative will assess the possibility of transferring volunteer employees outside of the targeted entity, thus reducing the need for declaring surplus. The Career Mobility process should be used and even encouraged.

4. Declaring Surplus

If the workforce reduction objectives are still not reached, the CP4 leader or his representative will identify employees with the lowest number of years of net credited service within the entity, declare them surplus

and fill out a 912M-Surplus form. This 912M-Surplus form will be active from the time the form has been filled out through to the end of Career Transition Services as defined in guideline 7.

The filling out of the 912M-Surplus form will be done no less than four (4) weeks prior to the start of Career Transition Services.

The surplus employee will remain on his position until he leaves the business unit and starts Career Transition Services.

If short term successive needs for workforce reduction involve several employees, it is strongly suggested that the above described actions be taken at the same time so that the surplus employee with the most seniority may take advantage of his priority for career possibilities.

5. Responsibilities once an employee has been declared surplus

In the event of a need to proceed to a workforce reduction in a specific market segment or in a designated territory, all efforts will be made to find placement for the qualified surplus employee in another market segment. The appropriate Human Resources consultant will work on identifying available positions in other districts of the Sales organization and will network amongst the various groups to favour the opportunities for placement.

The appropriate Company representative, together with the Transfer Management Group, must examine the possibility of reassigning the employee to an available position in the Unifor - Communications Sales bargaining unit or another bargaining unit subject to the limitations contained in any Collective Agreement or Company practices. The surplus employee should be offered at least one option of placement.

6. Transfer Management Group

Amongst other responsibilities, the role of the Transfer Management Group is to manage the 912M-Surplus forms and the Career Mobility process so that qualified surplus employees throughout the Company are given a priority when filling vacant or new positions with the Bell family.

7. Career Transition Services

The Company will offer Career Transition Services to assist the employee in his career transition period. This consists of, but is not limited to, providing counseling services, job search support, training (as determined on a case by case basis) and outside placement information. These services will be offered internally or externally to employees, based upon an assessment of the individual's circumstances and the opportunities for placement. The duration of these services may differ depending on individual needs. In all events, the Company will offer:

two (2) weeks of paid Career Transition Services;

or

• if the duration is longer, the Career Transition Services offered with any corporate program that might be available and applicable to the employee.

8. Separation

If the surplus Regular employee is not placed internally, the Company will offer:

a termination allowance consisting of a number of weeks of base salary, determined upon the
employee's net credited service (NCS), as outlined in the Attachment A of this Memorandum of
Agreement. For employees with 15 or more years of net credited service, the calculation will be as
follows: 1.5 weeks X NCS X basic weekly rate;

or

• if the amount is higher, any corporate severance package that might be available and applicable to the employee.

General

The Company and the Union are committed to promptly resolving problems and initiating discussions at the most appropriate level of management according to the scope of the workforce adjustment contemplated regarding the application of these workforce adjustment guidelines. The differences regarding the interpretation or administration of the provisions set out in Attachment A of this Agreement may be processed in accordance with the provisions of Articles 13 and 14 of the Collective Agreement.

Signed on the 31st of October 2023.

FOR BELL CANADA

FOR UNIFOR

Terry Deighton

Robin Dudley

TERMINATION ALLOWANCE

A Regular employee declared surplus will receive a termination allowance as follows:

Net Credited Service on Date of Termination	Number of Weeks at Basic Weekly Rate*
Less than 1 year	0
1year but less than 2 years	3 weeks
2years but less than 3 years	4 weeks
3years but less than 4 years	5 weeks
4years but less than 5 years	6 weeks
5years but less than 6 years	7 weeks
6years but less than 7 years	8 weeks
7years but less than 8 years	9 weeks
8years but less than 9 years	10 weeks
9years but less than 10 years	11 weeks
10years but less than11 years	13 weeks
11years but less than12 years	14 weeks
12years but less than13 years	15 weeks
13years but less than14 years	16 weeks
14years but less than15 years	17 weeks
15years and more	1.5 weeks X NCS X basic weekly rate

Note 1: * The basic weekly rate of pay is the monthly rate of pay divided by 4.35.

Note 2: For Part-time employees, the termination allowance will be paid on a prorated basis, based on the higher of the average of hours worked in the last two (2) months or the last 12 months before termination.

The following Letters of Intent are provided solely for information purposes and shall not be construed as forming part of this Collective Agreement.

ALPHABETICAL INDEX

LETTERS OF INTENT	Page
Direct Marketing Bonus Plan	46
Distribution Channels	49
Ergonomic Guidelines	50
New Consumer Market Sales Positions	51
Sales Bonus Plan	52
Review Process for Disability Cases	55
Sales Skills, Competencies and Career Mobility Training	56
Workforce Diversity and Employment Equity	58
Workload Management	59
Workways Mobile Profile	60
New Loyalty Bonus Plan Model	61



Robin Dudley National Representative Unifor

Subject: Direct Marketing Bonus Plan

Mr. Dudley,

This is to confirm our discussions during bargaining for the renewal of the Communications Sales Employees' Collective Agreement regarding the Direct Marketing Bonus Plan.

The Direct Marketing Bonus Plan shall apply to the employees working in the following occupations: Direct Marketing Associates (DMA), DMA - Loyalty Resolution Representatives and Team Coordinators. The Company understands that to create and maintain a sales environment that is successful, it is important to provide an effective incentive plan to drive sales performance.

The Local Sales Bonus Plan Committee includes:

For the Company:

- > One (1) Regional Sales Manager for Ontario and/or Québec:
- > One (1) Member of the LR/HR team for Ontario and/or Québec.

For the Union:

- One (1) Unifor National Representative for Ontario and/or Québec.
- One (1) Direct Marketing Associate/Team Coordinator for Ontario and/or Québec;
- One (1) Representative of the Unifor local Union and/or bargaining committee for Ontario and/or Québec.

This Local Sales Bonus Plan Committee will be maintained for the duration of the Collective Agreement as a forum for consultation and discussion on issues regarding the Direct Marketing Bonus Plan.

The Local Sales Bonus Plan Committee will:

- Be a forum for exchange on issues related to the application of the Sales Bonus Plan namely but not limited to the business rationale for changes brought to the Plan in the course of the year, the reason for payout adjustments;
- Meet on a quarterly basis (May, August, November, and February) to review results, performance indicators, and discuss issues associated with the Sales Bonus Plan. The February meeting will be held to discuss the 4th quarter results of the previous year. The calendar of quarterly meetings will be established at the beginning of each year;
- Make recommendations with regards to evolving the plan as required;
- Discuss and recommend a plan for communication to employees when applicable;

Meet at regular intervals as required ensuring a continuous follow-up.

The Company shall maintain the Direct Marketing Bonus Plan for the term of the Collective Agreement, which recognizes individual and team contribution toward sales and performance objectives. The plan features a motivational incentive to meet and exceed objectives. The potential earning opportunity is the percentage of base pay that will be paid as a bonus if the target objective is achieved.

Job Title	Step	2023	2024	2025	2026
Direct Marketing Associate - Consumer Market	All	23.73%	23.73%	23.73%	23.73%
Direct Marketing Associate - Consumer Market –Loyalty Resolution	All	23.73%	23.73%	23.73%	23.73%
Team Coordinator Consumer Market	All	23.73%	23.73%	23.73%	23.73%

Sales Objectives

Sales objectives will be established by the Company for each DMA, DMA - Loyalty Resolution Representative and Team Coordinator in a fair and reasonable manner. Such objectives cannot be changed in a manner that it is unreasonable. If it becomes necessary to modify the objectives, the business rationale for the change will be reviewed with the affected employees, after discussion with the union representative.

Bonus Plan Review Process

The parties have agreed to the following process to review issues associated with the Direct Marketing Bonus Plan:

- Where an employee is not satisfied with the way objectives have been set or in the way the payout has been adjusted, the employee must first discuss the issue with his immediate manager in an attempt to resolve it;
- If the issue remains unresolved, then the employee can address his issue to the Sales Bonus Plan Governance Committee in order for it to make a ruling on the request;
- The Sales Bonus Plan Governance Committee will be comprised of:

For the Company one (1):

- > CP4 Sales Manager for Ontario and/or Québec
- Representative of the LR/HR Team for Ontario and/or Québec

For the Union one (1):

- Unifor National Representative (Québec or Ontario according to where the employee is located)
- Representative of the Unifor local Union and/or bargaining committee (Québec or Ontario according to where the employee is located)
- An employee choosing to utilize this process will have two (2) options:
 - Option 1: Submit a request in writing to his manager outlining what he wishes to present to the Committee on his behalf by his Union Representative:
 - Option 2: Submit a request in writing to his manager outlining what he wishes to present to the Committee and of his intention to attend the meeting in person.

The final decision on any issue brought to the Sales Bonus Governance Committee belongs to the Company.

- In a situation where more than one (1) employee is impacted by an issue concerning the Sales Bonus Plan, the impacted employees will designate one representative to make submissions to the Committee on their behalf;
- The Committee will meet within twenty-one (21) calendar days from the date on which a claim is submitted by an employee to discuss the issue submitted;
- Once the claim has been reviewed and a decision has been made, the Committee will review the decision
 with the Unifor National Representative along with a Representative of the Unifor Local Union and/or
 bargaining committee and the employee concerned;
- If the employee does not agree with the decision, he may file a complaint that will be heard at Step 1 of the grievance process with the CP5 Manager. The CP5 review and decision is final. This complaint does not constitute a grievance and therefore cannot proceed to arbitration.

Communication to Unifor

Subject to applicable privacy legislation, the Company will provide to the Union, on a **quarterly** basis, the total payout by each active employee participating in the Direct Marketing Bonus Plan. **The quarterly payout amounts will be provided to the Union prior to each Local Sales Bonus Committee meeting.**

Yours truly,

Terry Deighton



Robin Dudley National Representative Unifor

Subject: Distribution Channels

Mr. Dudley,

This is to confirm our understanding reached during bargaining for the renewal of the Communications Sales Employees' Collective Agreement regarding Distribution Channels.

The parties recognize the need for the Company to grow and evolve within a turbulent communications industry in which Bell Canada must determine optimum sales channels, with bottom line responsibility for profit contribution.

The Company will develop and manage a full range of complementary (outside) distribution channels in an effort to take advantage of new opportunities in the market, ensure Bell Canada's presence whenever and wherever a customer makes a buying decision and to adapt to changing market conditions.

The establishment of alliances, for example with external vendors, allows for the blending of complementary core competencies thereby creating architecture to support business strategy and long-term objectives of all involved parties. Creating the right organization cost structure, skill set, processes and alliances ensures that external complementary services can be provided in a seamless fashion.

The Company's objective in this area is to pursue its distribution channel structure to improve the value contribution of the Sales function and to better serve potential markets, and not to supplant our internal sales force. It is the belief of the parties that the employment security of all employees is enhanced by efforts directed at creating a productive, flexible and cost effective environment and by increasing our presence in the marketplace.

It is the Company's intention to continue to move forward with an internal sales force aligned to Bell Canada's strategic thrusts. The Company commits to continue to dialogue with the Union, through the consultative process, on issues related to distribution channels in an effort to promote the mutual understanding necessary to alleviating the job security concerns of our employees.

Our success depends upon our ability to become a world-class communications player and on the continuous improvement of our competitive position. Delivering, achieving and sustaining the Company's competitive advantage guarantees mutual rewards and satisfaction as we work together to meet tomorrow's needs.

Yours truly,

Terry Deighton



Robin Dudley National Representative Unifor

Subject: Ergonomic Guidelines

Mr. Dudley,

This is to confirm our understanding reached during bargaining for the renewal of the Communications Sales Employees' Collective Agreement related to the Ergonomic Guidelines issued by the Company for employees who work with visual display terminals.

The Corporate Health and Safety group, in collaboration with the Corporate Health and Safety Committee, has developed an initial Office Ergonomics training for all new employees and an Office Ergonomics retraining module for the Accident Prevention Process (APP). These tools are intended for all employees and leaders and have been designed to increase knowledge and promote adherence to ergonomic principles.

All Communications Sales employees and leaders share a common responsibility to review the existing Ergonomic Guidelines and to promote and encourage their application in the workplace or while teleworking, especially when the nature of the work requires long periods working with visual display terminals.

The bargaining committees are supportive of the work being done by the Corporate Health and Safety group and the Corporate Health and Safety Committee (Bell/Unifor) in this regard and recognize that the information regarding the training and retraining guidelines may be found on the Corporate Health and Safety website.

Yours truly,

Terry Deighton



Robin Dudley National Representative Unifor

Subject: New Consumer Market Sales Positions (New)

Mr. Dudley,

The Company will fill 5 new Consumer Market sales positions exclusively offered to Communications Sales employees within 12 months of the execution of this Letter of Intent.

- 1. The positions will be electronically posted internally under Customer Operational Services, Sales & Loyalty.
- 2. Loyalty Direct Marketing Associates Consumer market and Team Coordinators may be considered for these positions. The Company will fill vacancies with qualified Company employees in the following order:
 - a. Direct Marketing Associates Loyalty
 - b. Team Coordinators Loyalty
 - c. Team Coordinators Sales
- 3. If there are no qualified candidates, the positions will not be filled and will be closed.
- 4. The Direct Marketing Associates Loyalty positions left vacant by these transfers will not be replaced.

Yours truly,

Terry Deighton



Robin Dudley National Representative Unifor

Subject: Sales Bonus Plan

Mrs. Giguère,

This is to confirm our discussions during bargaining for the renewal of the Communications Sales Employees' Collective Agreement regarding the Sales Bonus Plan.

The Sales Bonus Plan shall apply to employees working in the following occupations:

- Sales Representative;
- Inside Sales Representative;

The Company understands that to create and maintain a sales environment that is successful, it is important to provide an effective incentive plan to drive sales performance.

The Local Sales Bonus Plan Committee includes:

For the Company:

- One (1) Director Sales Operations for Ontario and/or Québec;
- > One (1) Member of the LR/HR team for Ontario and/or Québec.

For the Union:

- One (1) Unifor National Representative for Ontario and/or Québec
- One (1) Representative of the Sales group for Ontario and/or Québec;
- One Representative of the Unifor local Union and/or bargaining committee (Québec and/or Ontario).

This Local Sales Bonus Plan Committee will be maintained for the term of the Collective Agreement as a forum for consultation and discussion on issues regarding the Sales Bonus Plan.

The Local Sales Bonus Plan Committee will:

- Meet in January of each year to review objectives and share the design parameters of the Sales Bonus Plan before the plan is rolled out to employees;
- Meet on a quarterly basis (May August November February) to review results, performance indicators, and discuss issues associated with the Sales Bonus Plan. The February meeting will be held to discuss the previous 4th Quarter results. The calendar of quarterly meetings will be established at the beginning of each year;
- Be a forum for exchange on issues related to the application of the Sales Bonus Plan namely but not limited to the business rationale for changes brought to the Plan in the course of the year, the reason for payout adjustments;
- Make recommendations with regards to evolving the plan as required;
- Discuss and recommend a plan for communication to employees when applicable;

Meet at regular intervals as required to ensure a continuous follow-up.

The Company shall maintain the Sales Bonus Plan for the term of the Collective Agreement which recognizes individual and team contribution toward sales and performance objectives. The plan features a motivational incentive to meet and exceed objectives. The potential earning opportunity is the percentage of base pay that will be paid as a bonus if the target objective is achieved.

	% of Base Salary at Target			
Job Title	2023	2024	2025	2026
Sales Representative	40.00%	40.00%	40.00%	40.00%
Inside Sales Representative	45.00%	45.00%	45.00%	45.00%
Inside Sales Representative - Wholesale	58.33%	58.33%	58.33%	58.33%

Sales Objectives

Sales objectives will be established by the Company for each Sales professional in a fair and reasonable manner. If it becomes necessary to modify the objectives during the course of the year, the business rationale for the change will be reviewed with the affected employees, after discussion with the union representative.

Objective Delivery

The Company will commit to prompt delivery of objectives by no later than the end of January for the year for which objectives are being established.

Bonus Plan Review Process

The parties have agreed to the following process to review issues associated with the Sales Bonus Plan:

- Where an employee is not satisfied with the way objectives have been set or in the way the payout has been adjusted, the employee must first discuss the issue with his immediate manager in an attempt to resolve it;
- If the issue remains unresolved, the employee can address his issue to the Sales Bonus Plan Governance Committee in order to make a ruling on the request;
- The Sales Bonus Plan Governance Committee will be comprised of :

For the Company:

- One (1) CP4 Sales Manager for Ontario and/or Québec;
- > One (1) CP4 Manager of Finance for Ontario and/or Québec;
- > One (1) CP4 Director Sales Operations for Ontario and/or Québec;
- One (1) Representative of the LR/HR Team for Ontario and/or Québec.

For the Union:

- One (1) Unifor National Representative (Québec or Ontario according to where the employee is located);
- One (1) Representative of the Unifor local Union and/or bargaining Committee (Québec or Ontario according to where the employee is located).
- An employee choosing to utilize this process will have two (2) options:
 - Option 1: Submit a request in writing to his manager outlining what he wishes to present to the Committee on his behalf by his Union Representative;

- Option 2: Submit a request in writing to his manager outlining what he wishes to present to the Committee and of his intention to attend the meeting in person
- The final decision on any issue brought to the Sales Bonus Governance Committee belongs to the Company.
- The Committee will meet within twenty-one (21) calendar days from the date on which a claim is submitted by an employee to discuss the issue submitted;
- Once the request has been reviewed and a decision has been made, the Governance Committee will
 review the decision with the Unifor National Representative along with a Representative of the Unifor
 local union and/or bargaining committee and the employee concerned;
- If the employee does not agree with the decision, he may file a complaint that will be heard at Step 1 of the grievance process with the CP5 Manager. The CP5 review and decision is final. This complaint does not constitute a grievance and therefore cannot proceed to arbitration.

Communication to Unifor

Subject to applicable privacy legislation, the Company will provide to the Union, on a quarterly basis, the total payout received by each active employee participating in the Sales Bonus Plan. .The quarterly payout amounts will be provided to the Union prior to each Local Sales Bonus Committee meeting

Yours truly,

Terry Deighton



Robin Dudley National Representative Unifor

Subject: Review Process for Disability Cases

Mr. Dudley,

This is to confirm our understanding reached during bargaining for the renewal of the Communications Sales Employees' Collective Agreement related to a review process for disability cases.

The parties specifically want to address situations where benefits are suspended further to a difference of opinion between the employee's treating physician and the administrator of the Company's short term disability program.

As such, the Company and the Union will establish a Review Committee that will include a representative of Labour Relations for Ontario or Québec, a representative of the Disability Management Group and a Unifor National Representative for Ontario or Québec. With the written permission of the employee, the Committee will review the employee's disability claim and determine which steps could to be taken to try to resolve the issue relative to the employee's return to work date. The employee concerned may be present and be heard during the Committee meeting, if the employee so chooses.

A meeting of the Committee can be requested by the Company or the Union upon written notice sent to a representative of Labour Relations for Ontario or Québec or to a Unifor National Representative for Ontario or Québec. The meeting must be held prior to any employee's return to work date and no later than ten (10) working days from the date of the receipt of the notice, unless the parties agree otherwise in writing. The meetings of the Committee can be held via conference call or by any other means the parties agree to.

The Committee's role is to ensure that everything has been done in order to reach a just and equitable settlement for the employee. Policies and practices relative to the disability plans continue to apply.

Yours truly,

Terry Deighton



Robin Dudley National Representative Unifor

Subject: Sales Skills, Competencies and Career Mobility Training

Mr. Dudley,

This is to confirm our understanding reached during bargaining for the renewal of the Communications Sales Employees' Collective Agreement regarding the sales skills, competencies and career mobility training.

Both parties recognize that a highly trained workforce contributes to the effectiveness and productivity of the Company. Both parties also recognize that training is essential for the development and career mobility of employees.

The Company wishes to ensure that employees acquire and maintain the required skill sets to effectively accomplish their present jobs as well as acquire skill sets that will enable their career mobility within the Company.

The online Performance Management course will be taken within the first three (3) months of employment for newly hired employees.

The Company will also ensure that each employee has the opportunity to prepare a development plan with their manager on an annual basis, as per the Company performance management process.

Time allocation, eligibility and course selection

Time allocation

The Company will offer to eligible employees, during the life of this Collective Agreement, one (1) paid training day (7.5 hours), scheduled as per service requirements and local practices and taken during the scheduled regular working hours of the employee.

Eligibility

- Sales Associates, Direct Marketing Associates, Direct Marketing Associate Loyalty Resolution and Team Coordinators are eligible;
- A minimum of 12 months of net credited service is required;
- Working, or having made a permanent change to work, at a minimum of 35 hours per week, on a regular basis throughout the year.

Course selection

- Of the employee's choice, as per his development needs;
- Selected from the cost free online courses offered by the Company.

Yours truly,

To Day

Terry Deighton Senior Consultant - Labour Relations



Robin Dudley National Representative Unifor

Subject: Workforce Diversity and Employment Equity

Mr. Dudley,

This is to confirm our understanding related to Workforce Diversity and Employment Equity reached during bargaining for the renewal of the Communications Sales Employees' Collective Agreement.

The Company and the Union are committed to fostering diversity and fairness in the workplace so that all employees are treated with dignity and respect, are free from harassment, and are provided the opportunity to achieve their full potential.

As a market leader, Bell is committed to achieving a diverse workforce that reflects the community from which it is drawn, and to give itself a distinct competitive advantage by becoming:

- the employer of choice;
- · the Company of choice, and also;
- a leading communications innovator.

The parties agree to continue the Joint Corporate Diversity and Employment Equity Committee, whose purpose shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

- helping all employees to understand their responsibilities to treat others in a non-discriminatory and fair way;
- making recommendations to appropriate forums or departments in the Company;
- reviewing the progress of diversity initiatives in the sales groups;
- identifying and recommending methods to increase diversity, thereby working towards establishing a workforce that mirrors the community from which it is drawn;
- communicating the Committee's activities to employees.

The information made available by the Company and identified as being confidential shall remain confidential and be used only to carry out the Committee's activities, and cannot be used for any other purpose.

The membership of the Committee shall remain as currently established. Any modification shall be by mutual agreement.

Yours truly,

~ py

Terry Deighton Senior Consultant - Labour Relations



Robin Dudley National Representative Unifor

Subject: Workload Management

Mr. Dudley,

This is to confirm our understanding reached during bargaining for the renewal of the Communications Sales Employees' Collective Agreement regarding issues associated with workload management.

The Company and the Union reiterate their commitment to finding innovative and efficient ways to address employee concerns about administrative tasks and tools that inhibit their ability to fully concentrate their attention on selling.

The parties may form a joint Workload Management Committee which will include:

For the Company:

- > The General Manager Sales Operations and Planning or the appropriate delegate;
- > A management representative from the accountable business unit.

For the Union:

- Unifor National Representatives for Ontario and Québec;
- > Representatives of the Unifor local union and bargaining committee.

The joint Workload Management Committee whose purpose shall include, but not limited to the following:

- Identifying enablers that may expedite administrative tasks;
- Act as a forum for exchange on issues related to workload;
- > Meet as required to ensure continuous follow-up of issues presented to the Workload Management Committee.

The parties agree that promptly addressing and resolving workload issues will contribute to continuously improving our competitive position.

Yours truly,

Terry Deighton



Robin Dudley National Representative Unifor

Subject: Workways Mobile Profile (New)

Mr. Dudley;

This is to confirm our discussions during bargaining for the renewal of the Communications Sales Employees' Collective Agreement regarding Workways profiles.

As per the Workways policy updated on February 27, 2023, Communications Sales employees with a Mobile profile are required to work a minimum of 3 specific days each week at their Bell primary work location. In the course of this round of bargaining, for Communications Sales employees who respects the terms of Bell Workways policy and are currently on the Mobile profile, the Company agrees for the duration of the current collective agreement, to maintain the requirement of 2 specific days each week for Communication Sales employees at their Bell primary work location.

It is understood that team members with a Mobile profile may be required to come more than 2 specific days at their Bell primary work location to receive support while on a performance management plan or under special circumstances. The extension for more days per week would be the exception rather than the rule.

It is understood by the parties that should the attendance expectations set in this Letter of Intent not be respected by some Communication Sales Employees without valid reasons accepted by their leader, the Company may cease to apply the Letter of Intent to these employees and may require these employees to adhere to the presence in the office expectations set in its regular Workways policy.

This Letter of Intent will expire at the end of this collective agreement, which expires on December 31, 2026.

Yours truly,

Terry Deighton



Robin Dudley National Representative Unifor

Subject: New Loyalty Bonus Plan Model

Mr. Dudley;

This is to confirm our discussions during negotiations for the renewal of the Communications Sales Employees' Collective Agreement regarding the new Loyalty Bonus Plan

The Sales Bonus Plan for the Loyalty group will be redesigned and implemented effective the next month following the ratification date. The new design is outlined below:

	Multiplier
Top 25%	2
Next 25%	1.65
Remaining meeting	1
Not meeting	0

This Letter of Intent does not form part of the Collective Agreement.

Yours truly,

Terry Deighton